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§705 Eighth Amendment, Effect of Forfeiture of Proceeds or Contraband



1st Circuit upholds forfeiture of entire amount of laundered money, rather than net profit, from substitute assets. (705) Defen​dants participated in a large organization that laundered money for Colombian drug traffick​ers. During a 15-month period, conspir​ators wired over $136 million to foreign bank accounts controlled by the Colombians. The dis​trict court ordered the forfeiture of $136 million under one of RICO's forfeiture provi​sions, holding several conspirators liable for the full $136 million, and others liable for lesser amounts. Because the $136 million had been wired out of the country, each defendant was liable to pay the forfeited amount out of substitute assets. The First Circuit agreed that the $136 million wired to the Colombians consti​tuted racketeering "proceeds" forfeitable by the persons who handled or controlled these funds before they were wired. Moreover, a defendant's forfeiture extends to funds obtained by other members of the conspiracy, provided such funds were reasonably foreseeable to that defendant. Such a forfeiture did not constitute an excessive fine. It is quite rational to hold a defendant liable for an amount of money foreseeably laundered by himself and his own co-conspirators. U.S. v. Hurley, 63 F.3d 1 (1st Cir. 1995).xe "U.S. v. Hurley, 63 F.3d 1 (1st Cir. 1995)."
4th Circuit says forfeiture of real estate in addition to $3 million cash was not excessive fine. (705) Defen​dants were convicted of conspiracy to sell cocaine and marijuana, and were ordered to criminally forfeit $3,000,000 in currency and eleven tracts of real estate. The Fourth Circuit found that the forfeitures did not violate the Excessive Fines Clause of the Eighth Amendment. First, defendants conceded that under U.S. v. Wild, 47 F.3d 669, 676 (4th Cir. 1995), those properties forfeited as proceeds could not be included in an excessive fines analysis because a proceeds forfeiture “will never support an excessive fines challenge.” Second, the Fourth Circuit excessive fines standard is “whether the value of the property being forfeited is and excessive monetary punishment in relation to the offense giving rise to the forfeiture. The total value of the forfeited cash and real estate did not exceed the $4 million maximum authorized fine for defendant’s offense, and thus no excessive fine was imposed. U.S. v. Locklear, 121 F.3d 701 (4th Cir. 1997) (table) (unpublished).xe "U.S. v. Locklear, 121 F.3d 701 (4th Cir. 1997) (table) (unpublished)."
4th Circuit remands for proportionality inquiry in light of Austin. (705) In U.S. v. Borromeo, 995 F.2d 23 (4th Cir. 1993), a 4th Circuit panel refused to require the district court to perform an inquiry into the proportionality of the forfeiture of a building defendant used to facilitate his drug activity. On rehearing, the 4th Circuit vacated this portion of the opinion and remanded in light of Austin v. U.S., 509 U.S. 602 (1993). On remand, the district court should conduct an inquiry into the proportionality be​tween the value of the instrumentality sought to be forfeited and the amount needed to effectuate the legitimate remedial purpose of the forfeiture. It was less clear whether a similar inquiry into the proportionality of the forfeiture of the pro​ceeds of illegal activity was necessary. However, the proportional relationship between the value of the proceeds to the harm caused by a defendant's conduct might, in a given case, be relevant under the approach in Austin. Thus, on remand, the district court should also make a proportionality determination with regard to each and all items of property which the government seeks to forfeit. U.S. v. Borromeo, 1 F.3d 219 (4th Cir. 1993), reaffirming in part, vacating in part, 995 F.2d 23 (4th Cir. 1993).xe "U.S. v. Borromeo, 1 F.3d 219 (4th Cir. 1993), reaffirming in part, vacating in part, 995 F.2d 23 (4th Cir. 1993)."
5th Circuit says forfeiture of drug proceeds does not violate Eighth Amendment. (705) Defendant was convicted of various charges stemming from his involvement in a crack cocaine conspiracy. The Fifth Circuit rejected his claim that imposition of a civil forfeiture penalty, in the loss of two cars, constituted double jeopardy and violated the Eighth Amendment's prohibition against excessive fines. The court ruled that the forfeiture of drug proceeds is not punishment, and thus neither the Eighth Amend​ment prohibition against excessive fines nor double jeopardy analysis was applicable. More​over, even if these cars were not drug pro​ceeds, double jeopardy would not bar subsequent punishment so long as the amount forfeited is rationally related to the governmental and socie​tal losses associated with defendant's criminal activity. U.S. v. Buchanan, 70 F.3d 818 (5th Cir. 1995).xe "U.S. v. Buchanan, 70 F.3d 118 (5th Cir. 1995)."
8th Circuit holds that forfeiture of illegal proceeds does not implicate Eighth Amend​ment. (705) The district court ordered the forfeiture of claimant's boat and certain currency as the proceeds of drug trafficking and money laundering activities. Claimant argued that the forfeiture violated the Excessive Fines Clause of the Eighth Amendment. The Eighth Circuit disagreed. The forfeiture of proceeds of criminal activity that "simply parts the owner from the fruits of the criminal activity" does not constitute punishment and thus does not implicate the Eighth Amendment. U.S. v. Twenty One Thou​sand Two Hundred Eighty Two Dollars, 47 F.3d 972 (8th Cir. 1995).xe "U.S. v. Twenty One Thousand Two Hundred Eighty Two Dollars, 47 F.3d 972 (8th Cir. 1995)."
Ninth Circuit holds that the Excessive Fines Clause does not apply to the civil forfeiture of real property purchased with drug proceeds. (705). The government filed a civil forfeiture complaint in 1989 under 21 U.S.C. Section 881(a)(6) against claimant Garcia’s house and filed a notice of lis pendens. Owner Garcia was a DEA agent who led a double life as a drug dealer. The government alleged in its complaint that he purchased the house with the proceeds from the sale of more than 200 kilograms of cocaine and heroin that he and two crooked DEA agents stole from the DEA evidence lockers. Soon after each theft, Garcia and his cohorts made large deposits into Swiss banks with cashier’s checks structured to evade reporting requirements. Garcia traveled extensively in Europe, flew first class, paid cash for airlines tickets, and bragged to a colleague that he wanted to buy a Maserati or Lamborghini. He paid $556,000 cash withdrawn from his Swiss bank account for the defendant house, and shortly thereafter he obtained a mortgage for $350,000. In 1991, the government and claimants agreed to sell the house, pay off the mortgage, and deposit the net sale proceeds in an account as substitute res. Garcia was convicted on drug and money laundering charges and sentenced to 80 years in prison, after which summary judgement was entered for the government. Following the 1990 Supreme Court case of Republic National Bank of Miami v. United States, the present case was vacated and remanded. In 1995, the Ninth Circuit reversed the summary judgment under its 1994 holding in $405,089.23. Although the Supreme Court reversed that case in 1996, a mandate was mistakenly issued in the present case, then recalled, and further briefing was ordered. In 1997, the Ninth Circuit again reversed the district court, holding that probable cause had to be established at the time of the filing of the forfeiture complaint and could not be based on owner’s criminal conviction. On remand, the original search warrant was quashed and the government withdrew its lis pendens in 1997. In 1998, the attorneys levied on the substitute res for their unpaid fees, arguing that their claim to the $556,000 was enforceable and now senior to the government’s claim. The district court entered an injunction prohibiting the attorneys from enforcing against the substituting res. In 1998, the district court found probable cause for the forfeiture and entered judgment for the government, which the claimants appealed. The Ninth Circuit has now held that the claimants were not entitled to damages for the seizure of the real property, and that the forfeiture of real property purchased with drug proceeds was not unconstitutionally excessive. Affirmed. U.S. v. Real Property Located at 22 Santa Barbara Drive, 264 F.3d 860 (9th Cir. 2001).

9th Circuit says forfeiture of currency for failure to report it at the border is “excessive fine.” (705) Defendant pled guilty to failing to report currency he was taking out of the country in violation of 31 U.S.C. §5316(a)(1)(A). After a bench trial, the district court found the entire $357,144 was subject to only $15,000, con​cluding that any greater amount would be disproportionate to defendant’s culpability, criminal forfeiture under 18 U.S.C. §982(a)(1). However at sentencing, the court limited the forfeiture to because all of the money had come from a lawful source and was to be used for a lawful purpose. The government appealed, and the Ninth Circuit held that forfeiture of currency violates the Excessive Fines Clause “when the crime to which the forfeiture is tied is a mere failure to report pursuant to 31 U.S.C. §5316.” In such situations, there is no “instrumentality” relationship between the currency and the crime to satisfy the instrumentality prong of the Excessive Fines test. “Forfeiture of any amount [including the $15,000] would be unconstitu​tionally excessive.” Judge Wallace dissented, arguing that the currency was “instrumental” to the crime. But he would have deferred to the district court’s finding that any amount over $15,000 was not “proportional” to defendant’s culpability. U.S. v. Bajakajian, 84 F.3d 334 (9th Cir. 1996).xe "U.S. v. Bajakajian, 84 F.3d 334 (9th Cir. 1996)."
10th Circuit rules forfeiture of drug proceeds can never be an excessive fine. (705) The government secured civil forfeiture of the contents of claimant’s residence by presenting a “plethora” of evidence that the property was the proceeds of drug trafficking activity. Claimant alleged that the forfeiture constituted an excessive fine in violation of the Eighth Amendment. The Tenth Circuit held “as a matter of law that forfeiture of drug proceeds pursuant to [21 U.S.C.] §881(a)(6) can never be constitutionally excessive.” U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Property Described as Lot 41, Berryhill Farm Estates, 128 F.3d 1386 (10th Cir. 1997).xe "U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Property Described as Lot 41, Berryhill Farm Estates, 128 F.3d 1386 (10th Cir. 1997)."
10th Circuit holds that forfeiture statute al​lows forfei​ture of entire sum of money even if only a portion of it was used for illegal pur​poses. (705) 21 U.S.C. §853(a)(2) pro​vides that a person convicted of violating cer​tain criminal statutes shall forfeit any property "used or intended to be used, in any manner or part, to com​mit, or to facilitate the commission of, such violation." Agreeing with the 9th Cir​cuit, the 10th Circuit held that this statutory language "allows the forfeiture of prop​erty in its entirety even if only a portion of it was used for il​legal purposes." Thus the court rejected the de​fendant's argument that the jury should have been al​lowed to deter​mine how much of the $413,493 in cur​rency was used to facil​itate possession of marijuana. The court also ruled that there was a sufficient "nexus" with the il​legal activity, and that the forfeiture was not dispropor​tionate under the 8th Amendment. U.S. v. Harris, 903 F.2d 770 (10th Cir. 1990).xe "U.S. v. Harris, 903 F.2d 770 (10th Cir. 1990)."
11th Circuit says civil penalty for selling over-quota tobacco is not excessive fine. (705) A tobacco dealer sold many tons more tobacco than allowed by federal market quota regulations. He was acquitted of criminal charges, but was nonetheless assessed civil penalties equal to 75% of the market price of the over-quota tobacco. The Eleventh Circuit rejected his argument that the civil penalty violated the 8th Amendment, assuming without deciding that the penalty was subject to excessive fines analysis. The court found that the regulatory purpose of the penalty was to control or eliminate excessive production of tobacco and that the penalty was “proportional” to this legitimate end. “Only if the penalty exceeded 100% of the price of the over-quota tobacco … would there even begin to be a question of excessiveness.” Cole v. U.S. Depart​ment of Agriculture, 133 F.3d 803 (11th Cir. 1998).xe "Cole v. U.S. Department of Agriculture, 133 F.3d 803 (11th Cir. 1998)."
Illinois District Court rules forfeiting vehicles of inno​cent owners was not an excessive fine. (705) Plaintiffs challenged Chicago city ordinances that provided for seizure of vehicles used in the commission of crimes. The ordin​ances permit return of the vehicles on payment of what amounts to a $500 fine; if the owner cannot pay the $500, the car is sold and the proceeds minus the $500 remitted to the owner. No innocent owner defense is permitted in these proceedings. Plaintiffs argued, inter alia, that imposition of any penalty on innocent vehicle owners constituted an excessive fine violative of the Eighth Amendment. The district court disagreed. Because none of the plaintiffs alleged that their vehicles had been stolen at the time seized, the court found that “they have, in some measure, consented to the use of their vehicles by another, and the consequences thereof are ‘a matter to be settled between [Plaintiffs] and [those who have used their vehicles].’” In effect, the district court reasoned that, as Bennis v. Michigan, 516 U.S. 442, 116 S.Ct. 994 (1996), upheld forfeiture of the entire vehicle of an innocent owner, a $500 levy against the value of that vehicle is not an excessive fine. Towers v. City of Chicago, 979 F.Supp. 708 (N.D. Ill. 1997).xe "Towers v. City of Chicago, 979 F.Supp. 708 (N.D. Ill. 1997)."
Illinois District Court discusses excessive fines claim in currency transaction case. (705) Claimant withdrew and deposited money in various bank accounts in amounts less than $10,000. The government alleged these transactions were structured to avoid cur​rency transaction reporting (CTR) requirements, but did not claim the money was derived from an illegal source, and sought civil forfeiture of the funds under 18 U.S.C. §981(a)(1)(A). Claimant sought dismissal under Rule 12(b)(6), Fed. R. Civ. P. The court found that the government sufficiently alleged knowledge of CTR requirements and an intent to avoid them by citing the statute and averring that claimant structured his trans​actions to evade CTR requirements. The court also held that the government need not allege in its pleadings that structured funds are criminally derived in order to defeat a claim that their forfeiture is an excessive fine. The court deferred ruling on whether forfeiture of legiti​mately obtained structured funds violates the Excessive Fines Clause until the government shows that the funds were indeed involved in structured trans​actions, and the claimant “subsequently establishes the legal nature of his funds.” U.S. v. Funds in the Amount of $170,926.00, 985 F.Supp. 810 (N.D. Ill. 1997).xe "U.S. v. Funds in the Amount of $170,926.00, 985 F.Supp. 810 (N.D. Ill. 1997)."
New York district court orders criminal forfeiture because government proved nexus between ill-gotten proceeds and real property and RICO, gambling and bank fraud violations, and forfeiture was not grossly disproportional to the gravity of the defendants' offense. (560, 700, 705) The defendants were charged with bank fraud in violation of 18 U.S.C. §1344, and the indictment contained three forfeiture allegations relating to the charges, seeking forfeiture of property related to the commission of RICO and gambling violations, and specifically identifying the defendants' interests in more than $9 million and several real properties. The government further announced its intention to seek substitute assets in the event that any of the specifically identified assets could not be forfeited. Shortly before the case was given to the jury, defendants agreed to submit to the Court the determination of whether the requisite nexus existed between the properties sought for forfeiture and the charged criminal conduct. The court held that because forfeiture is imposed on a defendant in personam, the Government need not trace the proceeds to specific assets, and because it is intended to be a potent means of punishment, the Government need not provide a precise calculation of the proceeds. Because the evidence presented at trial easily established that defendants accrued that much in the course of their racketeering activities, the government's claim to total proceeds of $5,755,000 was allowed. Also, the defendants used the real properties to conduct loansharking activities and store instrumentalities of their gambling and other criminal activities. Thus, the properties were subject to forfeiture under the RICO statute. Moreover, evidence presented at trial established that the entirety of the properties was used by the defendants to further the affairs of the enterprise, and thus a straight proportionality analysis suggested that the entire properties should be forfeited. Finally, taking all of the Eighth Amendment factors together, the forfeiture was not grossly disproportional to the gravity of the defendants' offense. In addition, with respect to the $5,755,000 in proceeds, the court commented in dicta that it is not even clear that requiring the forfeiture of ill-gotten gains could ever be considered an excessive fine, noting that several courts of appeal have concluded since that forfeiture of proceeds, as opposed to legally-acquired property later involved in a criminal offense, does not implicate Eighth Amendment concerns of disproportionality. The court ultimately issued preliminary orders of forfeiture. U.S. v. Rudaj, 2006 WL 1876664 (S.D.N.Y. 2006) (July 5, 2006).

New York District Court rejects excessive fines challenge to currency reporting forfeiture. (705) Claimant was stopped after examination of his baggage on an outbound international Swissair flight from New York revealed two handguns. In conversations with Customs agents and on a Customs form, claimant asserted that he possessed approximately $2,000, but a search of his person and luggage turned up $97,253.00. The government sought forfeiture of the money under 31 U.S.C. §5316. Relying on U.S. v. Bajakajian, 118 S.Ct. 2028 (1998), claimant asserted that forfeiture of the entire sum constituted an excessive fine in violation of the Eighth Amendment. The district court found: (1) Claimant was a large-scale heroin trafficker convicted in the District of Maryland; (2) The cash was “directly traceable to [claimant’s] heroin trafficking”; and (3) Neither of claimant’s two conflicting stories about where the money came from was credible. The court held that forfeiture of the proceeds of crime is not punitive and cannot be an excessive fine. Even if this forfeiture were deemed punitive, it was not “grossly disproportional” under Bajakajian. U.S. v. United States Currency in the Sum of $97,253.00, 2000 WL 194683 (E.D. N.Y. 2000) (not reported in F.Supp.).xe "U.S. v. United States Currency in the Sum of $97,253.00, 2000 WL 194683 (E.D. N.Y. 2000) (not reported in F.Supp.)."
Texas District Court holds forfeiture of share of real property bought with criminal proceeds not excessive fine. (705) Defendants were convicted of insurance fraud and money laundering. The government sought criminal forfeiture of real property purchased in part with laundered proceeds of the offense. The court overturned a jury verdict granting forfeiture of the entire property, and instead entered a judgment of forfeiture against the percentage of the property purchased with criminal proceeds. The court then rejected defendants’ claim that this forfeiture constituted an excessive fine under the Eighth Amendment. U.S. v. Loe, 49 F.Supp.2d 514 (E.D. Tex. 1999).
